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Crane-Trenchard House circa 1850
Church Hill

Private

This 2 1/2 story frame dwelling stands on a lot
purchased by Dr. Thomas H. Crane in 1848 for $50.
Five years later, in 1853, Crane sold the lot
"with the improvements thereon" to George A. Trenchard
for $1000. There seems little doubt that the present
house was built by Crane during that five year
period. Though relatively plain in appearance from
the exterior, the interior remains largely intact
to the mid-19th century. The paneled stair, first
and second floor mantels, and much of the interior
trim are typical of the Greek Revival period.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Crane-Trenchard House is located on the

west side of old Maryland Route 213 near the center

of Church Hill. It is apnroximately two blocks
north of St. Luke's Episconal Church, and is the
first house south of the Helfenbein-Hubbard Funeral
Home,

The house is of frame construction on a brick
foundation, two-and-one-half stories high, five
bays wide, and one room deep. Flush brick
chimneys are centered at each end of a nitched
gable roof, and a nair of gable roof dormers are
symmetrically nlaced on the east or street facade.
an early 20th century one story »norch »rotects
the center three bays on the street facade, and
a two story frame addition pnrojects from the
north end of the rear facade, forming an L-»nlan
house.

The entrance is located in the center bay
of the street facade, flanked by a »nair of
six-over-six windows on each side. Five smaller
six-over-six windows are ranged across the second
floor. The dormer windows are also six-over-six,

and are located in the second and fourth bays.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Crane-Trenchard House is relatively wnlain
from the exterior, and closely resembles a house
type that proliferated in Tidewater Maryland throughout
much of the 19th century. Pilastered dormer
windows, a paneled Greek Revival door, and molded
exterior surrounds on the doors and windows
serve to distinguish this building as one of
the earlier and more refined examnles of its type.

Inside, two rooms have been partially
renovated, but the majority of the interior
remains original, orobakly dating to the 1840's
or 1850's. The mantels, stair, ané interior
woodwork form an excellent ensemble of the styles
and variations in use during that n»eriod, and
have remained in an excellent state of nreservation.

Architectural evidence suggests the house was
built circa 1850, and documentary research apnears
to confirm this date. The earliest record of the

lot of land on which the house stands occurs in

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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7.1 DESCRIPTION

These have segmental aréhed upper sash and are
enbellished with a pedimented gable supported by
pilasters and bullseye cavital blocks. The window
ormenings on the first and second floor are set off

by molded surrounds, and the entrance is set off by a
four-light transom, a reeded Greek Revival architraQe
with corner blocks, and the original Greek Revival
paneled door. A box cornice with bold ovolo-astragal
crown mold and bed mold is carried across the facade
and terminates at each corner.

On the north gable, a single six-over-six window
is located to the right (west) of the chimney on both
the first and the second floor. There are no openings
in the upper gable. A small four-light window in the
foundation to the left of the chimney allows light to
the cellar, but does not appear to be original. The
gable eaves are finished with a tapered rakeboard with
a molded edge.

There are no visible ovpenings on the south gable,
but a pair of small four-light windows in the upper
gable have been covered up and are still visible from
inside the attic. Irregularities in the wall surface

on the first and second floor suggest that original
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7.2 DESCRIPTION

openings may have been covered up on the lower floors
as well. The original molded and tapered rakeboards
remain intact,

The two story frame wing covers the north half
of the rear facade, leaving six-over-six windows
exposed in the south bay on both floors and in the
center bay on the second floor. The center window
is offset slightly to the south and is lower than
the south window to compensate for the interior stair.
Both second floor windows are smaller than the first
floor window. The original cornice remains where it
has not been covered by the wing.

The interior is arranged in a typical center hall
plan,.with one modification. The door at the rear
of the hall and an original door in the rear wall of
the north chamber both lead to the rear addition.
Although the existing wing is clearly late 19th or
20th century in date, it almost certainly replaced
an original kitchen wing in the same location. It
is not clear whether the original wing also covered
the rear hall door or was smaller, vnrojecting from the
rear of the north parlour.

Aside from the changes to the rear wing, the
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7.3 DESCRIPTION

interior of the main house has retained considerable
original trim and detail. The house was partially
renovated in the 1960's, but the south rooms on the
first and second floor are the only vart of the house
that was affected.

On the first floor, the south parlour has been
completely renovated and now has modern paneling on
the walls and an exnosed beam ceiling. The original
mantel and all original trim are gone,

The north parlour is virtually intact, aside
from a late 19th or 20th century closet added to the
right of the firevlace, which has been blocked and
fitted with a stove flue. The mantel is original,
with reeded wilasters surmounted by geometric blocks
énd paired brackets that support a olain shelf.

The fascia board between the brackets is decorated with
flat bands of trim . to form a bold geometric pattern.
This same pattern is reflected in much of the interiox
trim, including the rabbeted baseboard and a wide
chairrail with bkanding aonlied to the fascia board.

The architraves in this room consist of a beaded

board surround with a more traditional cavetto-ovolo

molding applied to the outer edge.
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7.4 DESCRIPTION

The stair rises'ag;inst the south wall of the
hall to a landing at the rear. It has an open-string
carriage, turned newels, sguare ballusters, and a plain
hand rail. The face of the carriage is decorated with
applied bands of flat molding, and a flat strip of
trim outlines the treads and risers. The space below
the carriage is finished with narrow vertical recessed
panels. The door to an original closet below the
stairs remains in place, but the closet floor has been
removed and an interior cellar stair installed. The
baseboard and chairrail in the stair hall are identical
to the trim in the north parlour. The door architraves
are different, however, consisting of a beaded fascia
board with two strips of ogee molding placed facing
each other, leaving a flat panel between. A plain,
sguare-section band of trim is set in the center of
this panel, dividing it into two vertical recessed
strips.

All of the original interior doors and both
exterior doors have also survived. The interior doors
have tall, naired vertical panels with beveled surfaces
held in the frame by a flat Greck Revival panel mold.

The front door has six recessed pénels on the exterior
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7.5 DESCRIPTION

face with scuare blocks in the center 6f each panel,
set off by plain strips of trim forming striking
geometric patterns. The interior face consists of
two flush vertical panels set off by a thin bead.
The entire interior face of the door is painted and
grained.

The second floor is now a modified center hall
plan. Single rooms flank the stair hall, and a small
chamber, now used as a bathroom, has been added at
the east end of the hall. Although it is not unusual
to find this plan variation as an original feature,
architectural evidence suggests that this partition

was added in the 20th century. The door surround is

plain, and the partition cuts across the original

baseboard of the hall.

The south chamber on this floor has been partially
renovated. The fireplace has been blocked, the
mantel removed, and modern closets installed on either
side of the chimney. The baseboard, chairrails, and
the door and window architraves are all original,
however.

In the north chamber, a closet has been inserted

to the right of the chimney and the fireplace has
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7.6 DESCRIPTION

been blocked and fitted with a stove flue. Otherwise
the room remains intact. The mantel is a wide board
surround, with applied Greek moldings and a plain
shelf supported by a heavy 3/4 bead molding. The
fascia board has scrolled ends and a beaded edge.

The baseboard is also bheaded, while the chairrail

is composed of a plain shelf supported by a beaded
fascia board. The architraves are identical to those
found in the north parlour on the first floor, and
the interior doors also match the interior doors
downstairs.

The stair continues up to the attic, but has
been enclosed to conserve heat. The railing and
ballusters have survived, however, and are unpainted
where they enclose the stair ovening in the attic.
The newel that remains in the attic is different
from those found on the lower floors. It is hexagonal
in section and tapers. It has never been painted,
and a number of the scribe lines used to lay it out
are still visible,

The attic was probably never used as living
space. Wide floor boards are nailed in place, but

the walls and ceilings have never been plastered and
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7.7 DESCRIPTION

the rafters and roof boards are not whitewashed.

The roof is of common rafter construction,
with 3 x 4 machine sawn rafters secured at the ridge
with pegged mortise-and-tenon joints. The rafter
pairs rest on a flat false plate supported by the
floor joists, and are not reinforced with collar
beams. The front dormers are original, but there
is no evidence to suggest there were ever dormers
on the rear of the house.

One detail of nossible importance is the nane
"N. E. Townsend" inscribed with white chalk in the
attic, on the north sidewall of the south dormer.

The age or significance of this inscription is not

known.
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8.1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

1848, when Dr. Thomas H. Crane bought the one-half acre
lot from his father, Dr. Jonathon Crane, for SSO.(l)
The deed describes the lot as being two roods or one-
half acre of land, and makes no mention of improvements.
Five years later, in 1853, Thomas Crane sold the

half acre lot, "with the improvements thereon", to
George A. Trenchard for SlOOO.(Z) There seems little
doubt that the house was built by Thomas Crane between
1848 and 1853, as suggested by the dramatic change in
the price of the property.

The house remained in the possession of various
members and descendents of the Trenchard family until
1905, when it was mortgaged to S. Earle Feddeman.(3)
In 1912, Feddeman assigned the mortgage to Matilda G.
Price, and in 1914 the executor of Matilda Price's
estate sold the property to James W. Johns for $635.(4)

In 1925, Johns sold the land and house to Maurice

(5)

E. Smith and Nellie M. Smith, his wife, In 1976,

Nellie M. Smith and M. Rogers Smith sold the property
(6)

to Mardean Miller II, the present owner.



(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

QA-371
Footnotes

Deeds, JT 5, folio 410. Jan. 31, 1848,

A search of all acquisitions by members
of the Crane family before 1848 was unsuccessful
in determining how Jonathon Crane acquired the
property. The family did own several farms
adjoining the town, and it seems likely that

the lot was part of one of the farms,
Deeds, JP 2, folio 384, October 5, 1853,

Refer to the following deeds:
JW 11, folio 439. September 27, 1880.
JEG 2, folio.36l. August 17, 1901.
JEG 7, folio 549. June 12, 1905.

JEG 8, folio 458. November 24, 1905,
Deeds, WFW 5, folio 514, August 12, 1914,
Deeds, BHT 3, folio 37. January 7, 1925,

Refer to the following deeds:
ASG Jr. 19, folio 379-380 April 21, 1948.

CWC 7, folio 225-227 March 30, 1964.

CWC 112, folio 251 " November 30, 1976.
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